
CITY OF ROOSEVELT PARK 
COUNCIL MEETING 

AGENDA 
December 4, 2023 

    6:15 p.m. 

1. Council Work Session
2. Call to Order and Roll Call
3. Pledge of Allegiance
4. Invocation by Councilmember
5. Nomination and Election of Mayor– Oath of Office
6. Nomination and Election of Mayor Pro Tem– Oath of Office

7. Public Comment on Agenda Items
8. Approval of Consent Agenda

a. Regular Agenda
b. Minutes of the November 27, 2023, Regular City Council Meeting
c. List of Bills
d. Annual Appointment of Officers

9. New Business
a. 2024 Meeting Dates-Council Authorization
b. 2024 Property and Liability Insurance Renewal
c. Poverty Exemption Resolution 23-15
d. Huntington Bank Account Signers
e. MERS HCSP Agreement

10. Comments from the Mayor and City Council
11. Reports from City Manager, City Attorney & Department Heads

12. Public Comment

Please state your name and home address 
          Please limit comments to 3 minutes per individual presentation 

(City Council Rules of Procedure:  10/7/2011)       

13. Adjournment

American Disability Act Compliance: For access to open meetings of the City Council and any of its 
committees or subcommittees, the City of Roosevelt Park will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids 
and services, to individuals with disabilities who want to attend the meeting, upon twenty-four hour 
notice to the City of Roosevelt Park.  Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services 
should contact the City of Roosevelt Park, City Clerk by writing or calling, 231-755-3721 or call the 
following: TDD: Dial 7-1-1 and request a representative to dial 231-755-3721.    



To: 

From: 

Date: 

Subject:  

Honorable Mayor and City Council 

Jared Olson, City Manager   

December 1, 2023 

Monday, December 4, 2023– CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

The following is information pertaining to items on the agenda for your meeting: 

COUNCIL WORK SESSION: 

1. Active Agenda Items

COUNCIL MEETING: 

a. Selection of Mayor- Per the City Charter the Mayor for 2024 needs to be elected from within the council during

the first meeting of December of every year.

b. Selection of Mayor Pro Tem- Per the City Charter the Mayor Pro Tem for 2024 needs to be elected from

within the council during the first meeting of December of every year.

c. 2024 Meeting Dates-Per the City Charter, the 2024 meeting date schedule must be set.

d. 2024 Property and Liability Insurance Renewal- As done annually, City Council is asked to authorize the

City Manager to execute the insurance renewal contract for the property and liability coverage lines.

e. Huntington Bank Account Signers – As a matter of fiscal responsibility, the City requires all checks be signed

by two authorized account signers. The City has routinely authorized the City Treasurer, City Manager, Mayor

and Mayor Pro-Tem to be signers on our checks written from the Huntington Bank accounts. After the annual

appointments and elections, authorized signers need to be updated with Huntington Bank.

f. MERS HCSP Agreement – The MERS Health Care Savings Plan agreement has been in place for full-time,

non-union, non-police employee contributions since 2017. This amendment to the agreement is needed to

comply with the POLC ratified contract allowing for the City to contribute remaining Vision/Dental

reimbursement bank funds to the HCSP. This will not increase expenditures to the City and is already a

budgeted expenditure.

If you have questions, please contact me.  

City of Roosevelt Park 

A Proud Community 



CITY OF ROOSEVELT PARK 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

December 4, 2023 

Item:  Election of Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem Date:  December 4, 2023 

Summary:  Section 3.12 of the City Charter requires at the first meeting in December each 
year, the City Council will elect one of its members to serve as the Mayor and one of its 
members to serve as the Mayor Pro Tem.  

Financial Impact:  None. 

Recommendation:   To elect the Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem. 

Signature:  Title:  City Manager  



Agenda Item #  

POLICY FOR SELECTION OF MAYOR AND MAYOR PRO-TEM 

 

The City Clerk will call the meeting to order and will chair the meeting up to the 

nomination and election of Mayor.  At that point, the City Clerk and the Mayor will 

switch seats. 

 

CITY CLERK  “Nominations are now in order for the office of Mayor of the City of 

Roosevelt Park for a term expiring in November, _____ .   

 

COUNCIL MEMBER:   “I nominate ______________for the office of Mayor.  (Note: 

no second is required, but may be submitted) 

 

CITY CLERK  “The name of _________________has been placed in nomination for 

Mayor.  Are there any further nominations for the office of Mayor?” 

 

This step is repeated until there are no further nominations. 

 

CITY CLERK  “Are there any further nominations for the office of Mayor?  There 

being none, the nominations are closed”. 

 

****Voting is held on each candidate, in the order of the nomination.  The first candidate 

to receive a majority vote of Council (at least 4 yeas) is declared elected, and no further 

candidate is voted upon. 

 

CITY CLERK  “The following persons have been nominated to the office of Mayor 

(List in order nominated) 

 

Those in favor of _____________for Mayor for the City of Roosevelt Park for a term 

expiring November, _____…  (Do a roll call vote) 

 

CITY CLERK  (If 4 yes votes are submitted)   “A majority of yes votes being received, 

________________is elected Mayor of the City of Roosevelt Park. 

 

(If less than 4 yes votes are submitted)… “A majority vote not being received, those in 

favor of ___________(next candidate as nominated) for Mayor of the City of Roosevelt 

Park for a term expiring November, ______….(Do a roll call vote) 

 

MAYOR PRO-TEM  The same procedure is used. 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

If no candidate for an office received a majority vote, no one is elected to that office and 

the process is repeated.  If deadlock continues, a 15 minute recess may give the members 

time to “caucus”.  One candidate may wish to withdraw, freeing up deciding votes.   

 

The Mayor and Mayor Pro-Tem will be seated after the selection process is 

completed and the oath of office is administered and will chair the remainder of the 

meeting. 



CITY OF ROOSEVELT PARK 
CITY COUNCIL 

 MEETING MINUTES 
November 27, 2023 

This meeting was called to order by Mayor Aaron Langlois at 6:15 p.m. 

PRESENT: 

STAFF: 

ABSENT: 

Council Members: Mayor Aaron Langlois, Mayor Pro-Tem Sutton, Diane 
  Goodman, Noah Crossno, Fawn Cruz, Matt Johnson       

City Clerk Ann Wisniewski, City Attorney John Schrier, City Treasurer Kate Dibble, DPW 
  Supervisor Ben VanHoven, Chief Shawn Bride   

Council Member Stacey Burmeister 

WORK SESSION 

Council discussed Agenda Items: 
• Oath of Office: Council Members elect: Sutton, Crossno, Johnson
• Fiscal Year 2023 – Fourth Quarter Budget Amendments
• Resolution 2023-15 MATS Resolution of Intent-PA 196
• List of Bills

Special Guests: 
• Jim Koens from Muskegon Area Transit and Erin Kuhns: WMSRDC

Mayor Langlois called the Council meeting to order at 6:46 p.m. 

2023-205 ROLL CALL 
City Clerk Ann Wisniewski called roll call. 

2023-206 INVOCATION 
Mayor Pro-Tem Sutton provided the Invocation. 

2023-207 PUBLIC COMMENT ON AGENDA ITEMS 
None 

2023-208 CONSENT AGENDA 
Council Member Crossno moved to approve the consent agenda with the addition of 
Members Sutton, Crossno and Johnson,” where present in the audience”.  This motion 
was supported by Mayor Langlois. 
Roll Call: 6 Ayes, 0 Nays, 1 Absent (Burmeister) 



         
2023-209 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
  None  
                             
2023-210 NEW BUSINESS 
 
  8A. Fiscal Year 2023 – Fourth Quarter Budget Amendments 
  Council Member Goodman moved to adopt the budget amendments for Fiscal Year  
                             2023 Budget as presented.  This motion was supported by Mayor Pro-Tem Sutton.   
                             Roll Call: 6 Ayes, 0 Nays, 1 Absent (Burmeister) Motion Passes 
 
                             8B.  Resolution 2023-15-MATS Resolution of Intent-PA 196   
                             Council Member Cruz moved to approve the reviewed documents, the Resolution of  
                             Intent and other materials presented by the County of Muskegon and the Muskegon  
                             Area Transit System.  This motion was supported by Council Member Goodman. 
                             Roll Call: 6 Ayes, 0 Nays, 1 Absent (Burmeister) Motion Passes    
 
2023-211 COUNCIL COMMENTS 
  Council Members shared comments.  
 
2023-212 DEPARTMENT HEAD REPORTS 
  Department Heads shared comments. 
 
2023-213 PUBLIC COMMENTS 
  None 
 
2023-214            CLOSED SESSION 
                             Council Member Crossno moved to go into closed session for the Intent of  
                             Collective Bargaining Pursuant to section 15.268 subsection C of the Michigan Open 
                             Meetings Act.   This motion was supported by Council Member Cruz.  
                             Roll Call: 6 Ayes, 0 Nays, 1 Absent (Burmeister).  Motion Passes (7:07 pm)     
                            
2023-215           OUT OF CLOSED SESSION 
                            Mayor Langlois made the motion to move out of closed session back into City  
                            Council meeting.  This motion was supported by Council Member Crossno.  
                            Roll Call: 6 Ayes, 0 Nays, 1 Absent (Burmeister).  Motion Passes (7:23 pm)                
 
2023-216           Motion - Amendment to Manager Contract 
                            Council Member Goodman moved to ratify the tentative City of Roosevelt Park and  
                            Police Officer Labor Council agreement as presented.  This motion was supported by  
                            Mayor Pro-Tem Sutton 
                            Roll Call: 6 Ayes, 0 Nays, 1 Absent (Burmeister). Motion Passes 
 
  2023-217 ADJOURNMENT 
  Mayor Langlois moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:28 p.m. This motion was   
               supported by Mayor Pro-Tem Sutton and carried unanimously. 
                           

Ann Wisniewski, City Clerk 



Invoice #

1/2

(231) 755-3721

ROOSEVELT PARK, MI 49441

900 OAK RIDGE ROAD

CITY OF ROOSEVELT PARK
A Proud Community

Thursday, November 30, 2023
User: TREASURER
DB: Roosevelt Park

COUNCIL LIST

INVOICE AMTDESCRIPTIONVENDOR NAMECHECK NUMBER

4206(E) BANK OF AMERICA BUSINESS CARD

102.13 TRANSPORT RESTRAINTS 24704732

Check Total 102.13 

4207(E) BLUE CARE NETWORK OF MI

1,641.36 RETIREE HEALTHCARE 233110002594

Check Total 1,641.36 

4208(E) BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MICH

1,952.78 RETIREE HEALTHCARE 172745359

Check Total 1,952.78 

4209(E) CITY OF MUSKEGON-WATER DEPT

23,357.40 WATER USE - ACCT # 199340201 110623

1.50 SEWER ACCT # 199342701 112923

53.12 SEWER ACCT # 199342801 110623

Check Total 23,412.02 

4210(E) HUNTINGTON NATIONAL BANK

500.00 ANNUAL ADMIN FEE - PENSION BOND 12/23-11 55104

Check Total 500.00 

4211(E) LEAF

148.53 COPY MACHINE LEASE DEC 15668693

Check Total 148.53 

4212(E) MET LIFE

321.97 LIFE INSURANCE DEC 120123

Check Total 321.97 

38250 ASHLEY IRRIGATION

654.00 WINTERIZE IRRIGATION AT BALLFIELDS 13104

Check Total 654.00 

38251 MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL TREASURERS ASSOC

99.00 MMTA 2024 MEMBERSHIP 8620

Check Total 99.00 

4213(A) EJ USA INC

1,526.02 HYDRANT REPAIRS 110230085873

Check Total 1,526.02 

4214(A) EMERGENCY SERVICES LLC

800.00 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE - DEC 20599

Check Total 800.00 

4215(A) KENT COMMUNICATIONS INC

1,380.01 WATER BILLS/NEWSLETTER DEC 328364

Check Total 1,380.01 

4216(A) MUSKEGON CENTRAL DISPATCH 911

1,812.80 TELEPHONE FY 24 2300001762

1,283.70 TELEPHONE FY24 PD 2300001763

3,786.33 CENTRAL DISPATCH FEES DEC 2300001819

Check Total 6,882.83 

4217(A) MUSKEGON CHARTER TOWNSHIP

915.66 CODE ENFORCEMENT OCT 2300015477

Check Total 915.66 

4218(A) MUSKEGON CNTY TREASURER

35,100.00 WASTE WATER/BOND PMTS WWUB103123

Check Total 35,100.00 

4219(A) THE VERDIN CO

695.00 2024 CLOCK TOWER MAINTENANCE 109396

Check Total 695.00 

4220(A) WEST MICHIGAN LOCK & DOOR



Invoice #

2/2

(231) 755-3721

ROOSEVELT PARK, MI 49441

900 OAK RIDGE ROAD

CITY OF ROOSEVELT PARK
A Proud Community

Thursday, November 30, 2023
User: TREASURER
DB: Roosevelt Park

COUNCIL LIST

INVOICE AMTDESCRIPTIONVENDOR NAMECHECK NUMBER

298.00 LOCK REPLACEMENT - CITY HALL PD 5338

Check Total 298.00 

4221(A) WEST MICHIGAN UNIFORM

50.00 DPW UNIFORM CLEANING 5779818

50.00 5781625

Check Total 100.00 

38246 MIERENDORF, KURT

400.00 VISION REIMBURSEMENT VISION1123

Check Total 400.00 

38247 PORTER STEEL & WELDING CO.

14.00 PD SUPPLIES - BATTERING RAM 30033

Check Total 14.00 

38248 SUTTON, CHRISTINE

59.90 HOLIDAY TREE LIGHTING 112823

Check Total 59.90 

38249 W.M.C.J.T.C. ATTN: LORI BOEVE

300.00 ACTIVE SHOOTER INSTRUCTOR TRAINING - MOR 5548

Check Total 300.00 

Report Total 77,303.21 



Consent Agenda Item 4 

CITY OF ROOSEVELT PARK 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

December 4, 2023 

Item: Annual Appointment of City Officers-2024 Date:  December 4, 2023 

Summary:  City Officers are appointed annually by the City Council. As required by Section 

5.2 of the City Charter, the “appointive officers of the City shall be appointed” by the City 

Council at their first regular meeting in December.  All positions were budgeted for however 
this is a formal recurring requirement, it is on the consent agenda for summary action.

Current City Officers for Reappointmetn:

City Clerk – Ann Wisniewski  

City Treasurer – Kate Dibble 

Chief of Police – Shawn Bride 

Superintendent of Public Works – Ben VanHoeven  

City Manager – Jared Olson 

Fire Chief – City of Norton Shores Fire Dept. (contract)   

Chief Building Official-Todd Kempf (City of Norton Shores) 

City Attorney – John Schrier/Parmenter Law 



Agenda Item_ ___ 

CITY OF ROOSEVELT PARK 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

December 4, 2023 

Item:  Meeting Dates for 2024-Council Approval Date:  December 4, 2023 

Summary:  The attached represents the proposed 2024 Calendar of Meetings. The Charter 
states that regular meetings shall be set by the Council at its yearly organizational meeting. 
The following list includes the date changes that are moved due to the fact that the first or 
third Monday is recognized as a federal holiday and City Hall is closed.  This also reflects the 
move of the first meeting of July to the week following Independence Day. The November 
meetings are moved to the Monday following the election and the second meeting of the 
month being on the 25th.  

The schedule represents City Council meetings on the first and third Monday of each month at 
6:15 p.m. (unless noted as a recognized holiday and City Hall is closed); the Planning 
Commission meetings on the fourth Monday of each month at 6:00 p.m.; the Zoning Board of 
Appeals meetings on the second Wednesday of each month at 6:00 p.m.; the DDA meetings 
are the second Monday of each month at 12:00 noon and the Recreation and Parks Committee 
meets the fourth Tuesday of the month at 6:00pm. 

Financial Impact:  None. 

Recommendation:  To approve the attached Meeting Schedule for 2024 as presented. 

Signature:  Title:  City Manager  

9a



CITY OF ROOSEVELT 
PARK 2024 MEETING 

SCHEDULE 
City Council Meetings: Work Session: 6:15 p.m., Council Meeting: directly following work session, Zoning 

Board of Appeals, Planning Commission and Parks Commission 6:00 pm., DDA at 12:00 noon. 
Special meetings will be scheduled and posted as needed. 

July 
8    City Council Meeting 
8   DDA Meeting 

10  Zoning Board of Appeals 
22  City Council Meeting 
29 Planning Commission Meeting 
30   Recreation & Parks Commission 

August 
12 City Council Meeting 
12 DDA Meeting 
14 Zoning Board of Appeals 
19 City Council Meeting 
26 Recreation & Parks Commission 
27 Planning Commission Meeting 

January 
     8     City Council Meeting 

8     DDA Meeting 
10   Zoning Board of Appeals 
15   City Council Meeting 
22   Planning Commission   
9   Recreation & Parks Commission  

February 
 5    City Council Meeting 
12   DDA Meeting 
14   Zoning Board of Appeals 
19   City Council Meeting 
26   Planning Commission  
27   Recreation & Parks Commission 
        n/m election day   

March September 
4      City Council Meeting 
11 DDA Meeting 
13   Zoning Board of Appeals 
18     City Council Meeting 
25   Planning Commission Meeting 
26   Recreation & Parks Commission 

3 City Council Meeting (Tuesday) 
9 DDA Meeting 
11 Zoning Board of Appeals 
16 City Council Meeting 
23 Planning Commission Meeting 
24 Recreation & Parks Commission 

April October 
     1     City Council Meeting 7    City Council Meeting 

      8          DDA Meeting 14    DDA Meeting 
10      Zoning Board of Appeals           16   Zoning Board of Appeals 
15 City Council Meeting 21 City Council Meeting 
22 Planning Commission Meeting 28 Planning Commission Meeting 
23 Recreation & Parks Commission 29 Recreation & Parks Commission 

May November 
13 City Council Meeting 
13 DDA Meeting 
15 Zoning Board of Appeals 

      20      City Council Meeting 
      28      Recreation & Parks Commission   
           Planning Commission (No Meeting)  

11 City Council Meeting 
11 DDA Meeting 
13 Zoning Board of Appeals 
25 City Council Meeting 
Recreation & Parks Commission 
Planning Commission Meeting (n/m) 

June December 
3  City Council Meeting 

   10    DDA Meeting 
12  Zoning Board of Appeals 
17 City Council Meeting 
24 Planning Commission Meeting 
25 Recreation & Parks Commission 

2 City Council Meeting  
9  DDA Meeting 
11  Zoning Board of Appeals 
16 City Council Meeting 
Recreation & Parks Commission 
Planning Commission (no meeting) 

All meetings are held at City Hall, 900 Oak Ridge Road in the Council Chambers. 



Agenda Item________ 

CITY OF ROOSEVELT PARK 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

December 4, 2023 

Item:  Commercial Property and Liability Insurance Coverage Date:  December 4, 2023 

Summary:   The City has received the following quote to provide commercial liability and 
property insurance coverage in 2024. The amounts reflect the annual premiums as quoted and 
if an investment dividend was credited.   

2022-$43,524 ($5 million liability coverage) 
• Dividend refund of $678

2023-$44,901 ($5 million liability coverage)
• Dividend refund of $920

2024--$49,345 ($5 million liability Coverage) 
Dividend refund of $1960.00 

The City of Roosevelt Park is currently covered with the MML Property and Liability Pool, 
and the coverage and claims experience has been very strong. The full coverage breakdowns 
are included for your review and staff will highlight.  The largest changes are the addition of 3 
more vehicles and a 4-wheeler.  Also, the automobile State MCCA fee increased $36.00 per 
vehicle. 

Financial Impact:  The City has $50,000 budgeted for this expense in Fiscal Year 2024 
which makes the annual premium under budget.  

Recommendation:  The City Council review and approve the coverage proposal for the 
upcoming 2024 year. 

Signature:  Title:  City Manager 

9b



1

Jared D. Olson

From: Connie Monson 
Sent: Monday, November 20, 2023 11:16 AM
To: Jared D. Olson
Subject: MML Liability & Property Renewal Summary - Effective January 1, 2024 
Attachments: City of Roosevelt Park  2023 Renewal Summary.docx

Good morning, Jared: 

Please find attached MML Liability and Property Renewal Summary or the City of 
Roosevelt Park.  

The City’s estimated 2024 MML Pool dividend is $1,960. Exact dividend amounts will 
not be calculated until year end.  

The City’s renewal premium increased $4,444. 

 The City added 3 additional vehicles, 2023 GMC Pickup, 2024 Aluminum Box
Trailer, 2023 Chevy Tahoe Police SUV insured for $59,467 Agreed Amount.

 The City added a 2022 Envy 4-Wheeler to Inland Marine equipment.
 Auto MCCA (Michigan Catastrophic Claims Association) State fee increased $36

per vehicle and is currently at $122 per vehicle. MML pays this $122 per vehicle
fee to the State of Michigan.

 MML property rate in creased 6 cents due to the increasing number of
weather/storm related property claims experienced by the MML program.
Michigan has experienced several severe storms over the past few years.

 MML property deductible increased from $250 to $500 due to increasing
numbers of property claims experienced by the MML.

 The Railroad company required the City to add endorsement for Contractual
Liability – Railroads. This holds the City and MML 100% responsible for any
claims where work was performed within 50 feet of the railway. This form waves
MML’s rights to subrogation of any claims. MML makes a $900 annual fee for
adding endorsement for Contractual Liability – Railroads.

 I just need you to respond to this email giving me your approval to issue the
City’s renewal policy.***

Thank you. 

Best wishes for a happy, peaceful, Thanksgiving.  

Connie  

































Agenda Item_______ 

CITY OF ROOSEVELT PARK 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

December 4, 2023

Item 2024 Property Tax Poverty Exemption Policy Update Date:  December 4, 2023 

Over the last year, several updates to the assessing regulations have occurred at the State level 
and as such our assessing department is requesting the City Council approve the attached 
resolution and documents. 

One annual requirement maintaining an updated poverty exemption policy and guidelines for 
homeowners with the City of Roosevelt Park.  The attached policy and guidelines now reflect 
the required 2024 update and has fulfills all requirements of the current assessing legislation. 

Financial Impact: None 

Recommendation: Move to approve resolution 23-15 and the corresponding poverty tax 
exemption policy and guidelines as presented.   

Signature:  Title:  City Manager 

9e



City of Roosevelt Park County of Muskegon 

Resolution No. 23-15 

RESOLUTION FOR POVERTY EXEMPTION 

WHEREAS, the adoption of guidelines for poverty exemptions is required of the Roosevelt Park City Council; 
and 

WHEREAS, the principal residence of persons, who the Supervisor/Assessor and Board of Review determines by 
reason of poverty to be unable to contribute to the public charge, is eligible for exemption in whole or in part 
from taxation under Public Act 390 of 1994 (MCL 211.7u); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to PA 390 of 1994, the City of Roosevelt Park, Muskegon County adopts 
the following guidelines for the Board of Review to implement. The guidelines shall include but not be limited 
to the specific income and asset levels of the claimant and all persons residing in the household, including any 
property tax credit returns, filed in the current or immediately preceding year; 

To be eligible, a person shall do all the following on an annual basis: 

1. Be an owner of and occupy as a principal residence the property for which an exemption is requested.
2. File a claim with the supervisor/assessor or Board of Review, accompanied by federal and state income

tax returns for all persons residing in the principal residence, including any property tax credit returns
filed in the immediately preceding year or in the current year or a signed State Tax Commission Form
4988, Poverty Exemption Affidavit.

3. File a claim reporting that the combined assets of all persons do not exceed the current guidelines.
Assets include but are not limited to, real estate other than the principal residence, personal property,
motor vehicles, recreational vehicles and equipment, certificates of deposit, savings accounts, checking
accounts, stocks, bonds, life insurance, retirement funds, etc.

4. Produce a valid driver’s license or other form of identification if requested.
5. Produce, if requested, a deed, land contract, or other evidence of ownership of the property for which

an exemption is requested.
6. Meet the federal poverty income guidelines as defined and determined annually by the United States

Department of Health and Human Services.
7. The application for an exemption shall be filed after January 1, but one day prior to the last day of the

December Board of Review. The filing of this claim constitutes an appearance before the Board of
Review for the purpose of preserving the right of appeal to the Michigan Tax Tribunal.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED that the supervisor/assessor and Board of Review 
shall follow the above stated policy and federal guidelines in granting or denying an exemption. 



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, this resolution is made a part of the minutes of the City of Roosevelt Park 
meeting on December 4, 2023. 

At a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Roosevelt Park, held in the Council Chambers 
at the Roosevelt Park City Hall, 900 Oak Ridge Road, on the 4th day of December, 2023, the 
foregoing resolution was moved for adoption by Council Member  . This 
motion was supported by Council Member . 

Upon roll call vote, the following voted: 

Ayes:
Nays:
Absent:

RESOUTION DECLARED ADOPTED 

Ann Wisniewski, City Clerk 
Date: 



POLICY AND GUIDELINES FOR POVERTY EXEMPTIONS FROM TAXATION CITY OF 

ROOSEVELT PARK 

YEAR OF 2024 

AS REQUIRED BY PA 390 OF 1994 

In order to comply with the General property Tax Act, P.A. 206 of 1893 as amended, Section 211.7u, 

which reads: "The homestead of persons who, in. the judgment of the supervisor and board of review, 

by reason of poverty, are unable to contribute toward the public charges is eligible for exemption in 

whole or in part from taxation under this act", the following policy for applicants requesting 

consideration for poverty exemptions will be followed: 

1. All requests for Poverty Exemption must be made on the form(s) provided by the State of

Michigan. Handicapped or infirmed applicants may call the assessor's office to make

necessary arrangements for assistance.

2. Applications may be filed with the City of Roosevelt Park Assessing Department after January

1, but before the day prior to the last day of the March, July or December Board of Review.

3. Applications are to be reviewed by the Board of Review, and may be reviewed without the

applicant being present. However, the Board of Review may request that any or all

applicants be physically present to respond to any questions the Board of Review may have.

This means an applicant may be called to appear on short notice.

4. The applicant(s) may have to answer questions regarding financial affairs, health, the status

of people living in his/her home before the board, at a meeting which Is open to the public

at large.

5. The Board of Review will use as a basis for the granting of such exemption the

following listed items and requirements.

a. Public Act 390 of 1994, also known as MCL 211.7u, as amended. (Copy

attached).

b. Bulletin No. 6, June 6, 2017, Michigan Department of Treasury, State Tax Commission

to include the definitions and requirements. (A copy of Bulletin 6 Is on file at the City

for review or purchase).

c. Poverty thresholds as provided by the United States Office of Management and

Budget. Income is defined in Bulletin No. 6. (Specific poverty thresholds list is

attached).

d. Asset thresholds for the entire household as determined by the City of Roosevelt Park.

(Specific requirements thresholds list is attached).

e. Specific requirements by the City of Roosevelt Park that must be met before the

application will be considered for approval. Be advised that some of the listed

requirements are included as part of P.A. 390 of 1994. (Specific requirements list is

attached).

f. Data submitted to the board by the petitioner.

g. Testimony taken from petitioner and information gathered from any source the

board may wish to use.

6. Any successful applicant may be subject to personal investigation by the City. This would be

done to verify Information submitted or statements made to the assessor or



board of review In regard to the applicant’s property tax abatement claim. Should any 

representation by the applicant appear to be false1 the exemption shall be denied. 

7. Applications for poverty exemption are for one year only. A new application must be

submitted for the following year.

8. The supervisor, or secretary of the Board of Review, will keep minutes of all

proceedings before the Board of Review and all meetings must be held in a

municipal building and pursuant to the Open Meetings Act.

9. The Board of Review shall follow this policy when considering all requests for a

poverty exemption. The same standards shall apply to each applicant in an

assessment year.

10. Poverty Exemptions denied by the Board of Review may be appealed to the Michigan Tax

Tribunal by July 31st of the current year or within 35 days of denial at a July or December

Board of Review.

Michigan Tax Tribunal 

PO Box 30232 

Lansing1 MI 48909 

Phone: 517-373-3003 

Fax: 517-373-1633 

Email: taxtrib@michigan.gov 



SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS FOR POVERTY EXEMPTION 
(As adopted by the City Council) 

In addition to the requirements outlined in PA 390 of 1994, also known as MCL 211.7u, as 
amended, the following apply: 

1. Applicant must provide current copy of deed or land contract showing ownership in
principal residence.

2. Applicant must provide copies of the most recent Michigan Income Tax Return for all
persons residing in the principal residence, including Homestead Property Tax Credit Claim
[MI 1041 CR-1 (Senior) or CR-4 (General) if he/she is required to file a state income return.

3. Applicant must provide copies of most recent Federal Income Tax Return (1040) for all persons
residing in the principal residence, if he/she is required to file federal income return. If
applicant is not required to file income tax returns, they must indicate this on the application. 

4. Any applicant or person residing in the principal residence who is not required to file
Michigan or Federal Income Tax Return is required to file an affidavit (Treasury Form 4988). 

5. Applicant must provide copies of W-2 forms or 1099 forms pertaining to tax forms
presented.

6. Applicant must provide a copy of a current Michigan driver license or state identification card
for identification.

7. The Board of Review will apply a three (3) part test to determine the eligibility and
amount of the exemption.

I. THE INCOME TEST:

An eligible applicant must meet the published federal poverty income standards as

determined annually.

II. THE ASSET TEST:

A poverty exemption shall not be granted to any applicant whose total liquid assets

exceed $1,500.



Under no circumstances shall a poverty exemption be granted to any applicant 

who owns any interest in marketable real estate in addition to their principal 

residence. 

Under no circumstances shall a poverty exemption be granted to any applicant 

who owns any interest in a recreational vehicle. 

III. INCOME FROM OTHER SOURCES TEST:

If the Board of Review determines that the applicant has or should have income

from other sources, such as relatives, dependents, friends, they may add this income

to the applicant's reported income and if the resulting sum of these incomes is

greater than the Federal Poverty Income Standards, then a poverty exemption will

be denied. If the amount of the income added to the applicant's reported income

and the resulting sum is less than the Federal Poverty Income Standards, then a

poverty exemption may be granted.

8. Granting a poverty exemption does not relieve the taxpayer of the burden of special

assessments levied against the property. Special Assessments will still be due and 
payable.

2023 Poverty Guidelines: 48 Contiguous States 

Size of Family Unit Poverty Guidelines 
1 $ 14,580
2 $ 19,720
3 $ 24,860
4 $ 30,000
5 $ 35,140
6 $ 40,280
7 $ 45,420
8 $ 50,560
For each additional person $ 5,140 



Agenda Item__
_
__ ___ 

CITY OF ROOSEVELT PARK 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

December 4, 2023 

Item:  Updating Huntington Bank Account Signers Date:  December 4, 2023 

Summary: The City requires two part signatures for checks written, and as such authorized 
signers are the City Manager, the City Treasurer, the Mayor and the Mayor Pro-Tem. 
Authorized signers must be on file with Huntington Bank. Upon election of new board 
members and appointment of Mayor and Mayor Pro-Tem the signature card with the bank 
requires updating. 

Financial Impact:  None. 

Recommendation:   Update Huntington Bank signature card to reflect approved account 
signers as City Manager Jared Olson, City Treasurer Kate Dibble, Mayor _____ and Mayor 
Pro-Tem ______. 

Signature:  Title:  City Manager  

9d



 Agenda Item________ 

CITY OF ROOSEVELT PARK 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

December 4, 2023

MERS HCSP Employer/Employee Contribution Amendment Date:  December 4, 2023 

Summary:  This plan allows employers and employees to make pre-tax contributions in a 
Health Care Savings Plan contribution account.  Included is a lengthy breakdown of the plan 
options and details.  Since 2017, this plan has been offered as an employee only system for 
Full Time, Non-union, Non-police but with the ratification of the new 2023-2025 collective 
bargaining agreement with the POLC, an employer contribution is being added for any fund 
remaining in an employee’s vision/dental reimbursement bank. 

Any full time employee who has not exhausted their vision and dental reimbursement 
allocation for a fiscal year beginning with December 1, 2023 will receive the remaining 
dollars as a deposit to their MERS HCSP. 

This HCSP is accessible to employees upon separation from employment with the City and 
can be used for qualified medical expenses only. 

Financial Impact: None, as the Vision/Dental reimbursement is an already annual budgeted 
item which cannot exceed $1500 per year per full time empl

Recommendation:  To approve the amended MERS HCSP Plan document as presented for 
all full time employees effective for Fiscal Year 2024. 

Signature:  Title:  City Manager 

9E



Form MD-170 (version 2023-04-14) Page 1 of 3

www.mersofmich.com1134 Municipal Way Lansing, MI 48917 | 800.767.2308 | Fax 517.703.9707

MERS Health Care Savings Program 
Participation Agreement

I. PARTICIPATING EMPLOYER

Employer Name:  __________________________________________________________________

Municipality Number: _________________________  Division Number: ___________________

II. EFFECTIVE DATE

1. If this is the initial Participation Agreement relating to the MERS Health Care Savings Program

for this covered group, the effective date of the program here adopted shall be the 1st day of

_______________________, 20_____.
                

2. If this is an amendment and restatement of an existing Participation Agreement relating to the
MERS Health Care Savings Program for this covered group, the effective date of this amendment

and restatement shall be effective the 1st day of _______________________, 20_____.

Note: You only need to mark changes to your plan throughout the remainder of this Agreement.

III. COVERED EMPLOYEE GROUPS
A participating Employer may cover all of its employee groups, bargaining units, or personnel/
employee classifications (“Covered Group”) in the same Health Care Savings Program plan.
Contributions shall be made on the same basis within each Covered Group according to
the associated HCSP Contribution Addendum, remitted as directed by MERS. This agreement
encompasses the following group(s):

_______________________________________________________________________________

Note: To maintain the tax-favored status of the employer’s Health Care Savings Program
and to comply with federal law, the Employer may not provide coverage or benefit levels to
highly-compensated employees that are not provided to non highly-compensated employees.

IV. ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEES
Only Employees of a “municipality” may be covered by the Health Care Savings Program Participation
Agreement. Independent contractors may not participate in the Health Care Savings Program.

The Employer shall provide MERS with the name, address, Social Security Number, and date of birth
for each Eligible Employee, as defined by the Participation Agreement.

(Name of municipality or court)

(Name/s of HCSP covered group/s)

Probationary Periods (select one):
Contributions will begin after the probationary period has been satisfied. Probationary periods are allowed
in one-month increments, no longer than 12 months. During this probationary period, contributions will not
be reported and service toward vesting will begin when probationary period has ended.

The probationary period will be ______ month(s).

No probationary period.

(Month)

(Month)

(Year)

(Year)

The Employer, a participating municipality or court within the state of Michigan, hereby agrees to adopt and 
administer the MERS Health Care Savings Program provided by the Municipal Employees’ Retirement System 
of Michigan, in accordance with the MERS Health Care Savings Program Plan Document, subject to the terms 
and conditions herein.

https://resources.mersofmich.com/SharepointFormsService/Default.aspx?FormName=MD-173_HCSPcontributionAddendum.pdf
https://assets.mersofmich.com/forms/HCSP-RHFV_PlanDocument.pdf


Form MD-170 (version 2023-04-14) Page 2 of 3

MERS Health Care Savings Program Participation Agreement

V. EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
The Participating Employer hereby elects to make contributions to the Plan. Contributions shall be
made on the same basis within each Covered Group specified in this agreement, and remitted to
MERS as directed by the employer, to be credited to the individual accounts of Eligible Employees
according to the associated Contribution Addendum.

Frequency: 
Contributions will be remitted according to Employer’s “Payroll Period” which represents the 
actual period amounts are withheld from participant paychecks, or within the month during which 
amounts are withheld. Contributions will be submitted (check one):

Weekly
Bi-Weekly (every other week)

Vesting Cycle For Basic Employer Contributions Only. The employer contributions identified 
in this Participation Agreement are subject to the following vesting cycle (where vesting is 
different, separate participation agreement must be completed).

Immediate Vesting upon Participation

Cliff Vesting: The participant is 100% vested upon _____________________ year(s).

Graded Vesting Percentage per year of service: Employers can select the percentage of 
vesting with the corresponding years of service:

Years of Service Percent Vested
______________ _____________
______________ _____________
______________ _____________
______________ _____________
______________ _____________
______________ _____100%___

FORFEITURE PROVISION. Upon separation from service with the Employer prior to meeting 
the required vesting schedule set out above or in the event a Participant dies without 
Dependent(s) and/or a named Beneficiary, a Participant’s account assets shall (where forfeiture 
is different, separate participation agreement must be completed):

Check only one:
Remain in the HCSP sub-trust to be reallocated among all Plan participants equally
Remain in the HCSP sub-trust to be used to offset future Employer Contributions
Be transferred to the Retiree Health Funding Vehicle (“RHFV”)

(Stated years)

 Semi-Monthly (twice each month)
 Monthly 

https://resources.mersofmich.com/SharepointFormsService/Default.aspx?FormName=MD-173_HCSPcontributionAddendum.pdf


Form MD-170 (version 2023-04-14) Page 3 of 3

MERS Health Care Savings Program Participation Agreement

VI. MODIFICATION OF THE TERMS OF THE PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT
If a Participating Employer desires to amend any of its previous elections contained in this
Participation Agreement, including attachments, the Governing Body by official action must adopt
a new Participation Agreement and forward it to the Board for approval. The amendment of the new
Participation Agreement is not effective until approved by the Board and other procedures required by
the Plan Document have been implemented.

VII. APPOINTING MERS AS THE PROGRAM ADMINISTRATOR
The Employer hereby agrees to the provisions of the MERS Health Care Savings Program Plan
Document (“Plan Document”). The Employer also agrees that in the event of any conflict between the
Plan Document and this Participation Agreement, the Plan Document controls.

VIII. FEES AND EXPENSES
Employer acknowledges that investment selection and associated participant fees and operating
expenses are established and charged by MERS as set forth in the Investment Fund and Fee
Summary sheets available at www.mersofmich.com and may be amended by MERS.

IX. STATE LAW
To the extent not preempted by federal law, this agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with
Michigan law.

X. TERMINATION OF THE PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT
This Participation Agreement may be terminated only in accordance with the Plan Document.

XI. ENFORCEMENT

1. This Participation Agreement may be terminated only in accordance with the MERS Health Care
Savings Program Plan Document.

2. The Employer hereby agrees to the provisions of the MERS Health Care Savings Program Plan
Document.

3. The employer hereby acknowledges it understands that failure to properly fill out this Participation
Agreement may result in the ineligibility of the program.

XII. EXECUTION

Authorized Designee of Governing Body of Municipality or Chief Judge of Court

The foregoing Participation Agreement is hereby approved by ____________________________________ 

on _______________________.

Authorized signature: _____________________________________________________________________

Name (printed): __________________________________________________________________________

Title:  ___________________________________________________________________________________

Received and Approved by the Municipal Employees’ Retirement System of Michigan 

Dated:  __________________________ , 20 _____  Signature: ___________________________________
(Authorized MERS Signatory)

(Name of Approving Employer)

(MM/DD/YYYY)

https://assets.mersofmich.com/forms/HCSP-RHFV_PlanDocument.pdf
https://assets.mersofmich.com/forms/HCSP-RHFV_PlanDocument.pdf
https://www.mersofmich.com/mers/about-mers/investments/investment-menu-hcsp-ira/
https://assets.mersofmich.com/forms/HCSP-RHFV_PlanDocument.pdf
https://assets.mersofmich.com/forms/HCSP-RHFV_PlanDocument.pdf
https://assets.mersofmich.com/forms/HCSP-RHFV_PlanDocument.pdf
https://assets.mersofmich.com/forms/HCSP-RHFV_PlanDocument.pdf
klajoie
Highlight

klajoie
Highlight

klajoie
Highlight

klajoie
Highlight



Form MD-173 (version 2021-08-20) Page 1 of 2

www.mersofmich.com1134 Municipal Way Lansing, MI 48917 | 800.767.2308 | Fax 517.703.9711

Contribution Addendum for  
MERS Health Care Savings Program (HCSP)

C. Mandatory Salary Reduction (Before-Tax) Contributions. Before-tax Employer Contributions 
shall be made that represent a mandatory salary reduction resulting from collective bargaining 
or the establishment of a personnel policy. These reductions may be made as a percentage of 
salary or a specific dollar amount.

Contribution structure (specify $ or % and, if a %, include the basis for that contribution. 
For example: Employees will contribute 3% of base wages): 

This is an Addendum to the Participation Agreement completed by ______________________________________ 

for _____________________________________________________________________ of  ____________. 

The Addendum modifies the MERS Health Care Savings Program Participation Agreement. Please complete 
this addendum for each contribution structure associated with the covered employee group.

Name of Participating Employer

Division CodeCovered Employee Group

Check one or more (A or B, C and/or D):
A. Employer Contributions for Retirees / Former Employees. Employer contributions may be 

made according to any frequency. Identify below the contribution formula or amount that will 
apply to all in this covered group. Note: If this contribution is selected, Sections B, C, and D do 
not apply.

Contribution structure (specify $ or %): _________________________________________________

For active employees, please check one or more below (B, C, and/or D).

B. Basic Employer (Before-Tax) Contributions. Before-tax employer contributions may be 
made as a percentage of salary and/or by a specified dollar amount. Identify below the basic 
employer contribution formula to be applied to the covered groups within the Health Care 
Savings Program identified in this addendum. 

Contribution structure (specify $ or % and, if a %, include the basis for that contribution.  
For example: Employer will contribute 3% of base wages): 

City of Roosevelt Park

Full-time Non-Union, Non-Police 301301

Remaining eligible amount of vision/dental reimbursement as of end of Fiscal Year

1% of gross wages



Form MD-173 (version 2021-08-20) Page 2 of 2

Contribution Addendum for MERS Health Care Savings Program (HCSP)

D. Mandatory Leave Conversion (Before-Tax) Contributions. Before-tax Employer
Contributions shall be made that represent a mandatory conversion of accrued leave including,
but not limited to vacation, holiday, sick leave, or severance amounts otherwise paid out, to a
cash contribution. These contributions may be calculated as a percentage of accrued leave or
a specific dollar amount representing the accrued leave. Leave conversions may be made on
an annual basis or at separation from service, or at such other time as the Employer indicates.
(Note: The leave conversion program shall not permit employees the option of receiving cash in
lieu of the employer contribution.)

Check here if the covered employee group has the option to direct any/all of the 
leave conversion lump sum to an existing 457 program.

Check one or more:

As of _____________________________, ___________% of ___________________________
                            

must be contributed to the HCSP.

As of _____________________________, ___________% of ___________________________
                            

must be contributed to the HCSP.

As of _____________________________, ___________% of ___________________________
                            

must be contributed to the HCSP.

As of _____________________________, ___________% of ___________________________
                            

must be contributed to the HCSP.

Annual date or X weeks before termination Percentage Type of Leave Conversion (sick, 
vacation, etc.)

Annual date or X weeks before termination Percentage Type of Leave Conversion (sick, 
vacation, etc.)

Annual date or X weeks before termination Percentage Type of Leave Conversion (sick, 
vacation, etc.)

Annual date or X weeks before termination Percentage Type of Leave Conversion (sick, 
vacation, etc.)

Post-Tax Employee Contributions. Post-tax Employee Contributions made by Eligible Employees 
within the Covered Group(s) shall be remitted as directed by the Program Administrator, to be credited 
to the individual accounts of Eligible Employees. All Employee Contributions must be remitted to 
MERS along with the Participation Report.



Form MD-173 (version 2021-08-20) Page 1 of 2

www.mersofmich.com1134 Municipal Way Lansing, MI 48917 | 800.767.2308 | Fax 517.703.9711

Contribution Addendum for  
MERS Health Care Savings Program (HCSP)

C. Mandatory Salary Reduction (Before-Tax) Contributions. Before-tax Employer Contributions 
shall be made that represent a mandatory salary reduction resulting from collective bargaining 
or the establishment of a personnel policy. These reductions may be made as a percentage of 
salary or a specific dollar amount.

Contribution structure (specify $ or % and, if a %, include the basis for that contribution. 
For example: Employees will contribute 3% of base wages): 

This is an Addendum to the Participation Agreement completed by ______________________________________ 

for _____________________________________________________________________ of  ____________. 

The Addendum modifies the MERS Health Care Savings Program Participation Agreement. Please complete 
this addendum for each contribution structure associated with the covered employee group.

Name of Participating Employer

Division CodeCovered Employee Group

Check one or more (A or B, C and/or D):
A. Employer Contributions for Retirees / Former Employees. Employer contributions may be 

made according to any frequency. Identify below the contribution formula or amount that will 
apply to all in this covered group. Note: If this contribution is selected, Sections B, C, and D do 
not apply.

Contribution structure (specify $ or %): _________________________________________________

For active employees, please check one or more below (B, C, and/or D).

B. Basic Employer (Before-Tax) Contributions. Before-tax employer contributions may be 
made as a percentage of salary and/or by a specified dollar amount. Identify below the basic 
employer contribution formula to be applied to the covered groups within the Health Care 
Savings Program identified in this addendum. 

Contribution structure (specify $ or % and, if a %, include the basis for that contribution.  
For example: Employer will contribute 3% of base wages): 

City of Roosevelt Park

Full-time Union 301301

Remaining eligible amount of vision/dental reimbursement as of end of Fiscal Year



Form MD-173 (version 2021-08-20) Page 2 of 2

Contribution Addendum for MERS Health Care Savings Program (HCSP)

D. Mandatory Leave Conversion (Before-Tax) Contributions. Before-tax Employer
Contributions shall be made that represent a mandatory conversion of accrued leave including,
but not limited to vacation, holiday, sick leave, or severance amounts otherwise paid out, to a
cash contribution. These contributions may be calculated as a percentage of accrued leave or
a specific dollar amount representing the accrued leave. Leave conversions may be made on
an annual basis or at separation from service, or at such other time as the Employer indicates.
(Note: The leave conversion program shall not permit employees the option of receiving cash in
lieu of the employer contribution.)

Check here if the covered employee group has the option to direct any/all of the 
leave conversion lump sum to an existing 457 program.

Check one or more:

As of _____________________________, ___________% of ___________________________
                            

must be contributed to the HCSP.

As of _____________________________, ___________% of ___________________________
                            

must be contributed to the HCSP.

As of _____________________________, ___________% of ___________________________
                            

must be contributed to the HCSP.

As of _____________________________, ___________% of ___________________________
                            

must be contributed to the HCSP.

Annual date or X weeks before termination Percentage Type of Leave Conversion (sick, 
vacation, etc.)

Annual date or X weeks before termination Percentage Type of Leave Conversion (sick, 
vacation, etc.)

Annual date or X weeks before termination Percentage Type of Leave Conversion (sick, 
vacation, etc.)

Annual date or X weeks before termination Percentage Type of Leave Conversion (sick, 
vacation, etc.)

Post-Tax Employee Contributions. Post-tax Employee Contributions made by Eligible Employees 
within the Covered Group(s) shall be remitted as directed by the Program Administrator, to be credited 
to the individual accounts of Eligible Employees. All Employee Contributions must be remitted to 
MERS along with the Participation Report.


	Item 1 AGN 12-4-2023
	CITY OF ROOSEVELT PARK
	COUNCIL MEETING
	AGENDA
	December 4, 2023
	6:15 p.m.


	Item 2 Council Memo 12-4-2023
	Item 2.1 Memo-2024 Selection of Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem 2
	Item 2.2  Policy-MAYORAPT-update2018-removed dates to fit all years
	Item 3 Meeting Minutes 11-27-2023
	Item 4 12-4-23 List of Bills
	Item 5 CA-2024 Appointments for City Staff
	Item 6 MEMO- 2024 Calendar of Meetings
	Item 6.1 2024  Meeting Schedule
	Item 7 memo- Liability and property quotes 2024
	Item 7.1 Connie Monson Email
	Item 7.2 Liability & Property Insurance Renewal 2024 MML
	Item 8 Memo-2024 Poverty Exemption Policy and Resolution Update
	Item 8.1 Poverty Exemption Resolution and Policy 2024 RP
	Item 9 Memo-Huntington Bank Account Signers
	Item 10 MERS HCSP Amendment
	Item 10.1 6107- Revised HCSP Participation Agreement

	Employer: City of Roosevelt Park
	MuniNumber: 6107
	DivisionNumber: 301301
	AdoptionMonth: 
	AmendmentMonth: December
	CoveredGroups: FT Union and Non-Union, Non-Police
	ProbationaryMonths-03: 
	ProbationaryPeriod: Off
	AdoptionYear: 
	AmendmentYear : 23
	Years: 
	Vesting: Off
	ServiceYears1: 
	PercentVested1: 
	ServiceYears2: 
	PercentVested2: 
	ServiceYears3: 
	PercentVested3: 
	ServiceYears4: 
	PercentVested4: 
	ServiceYears5: 
	PercentVested5: 
	ServiceYears6: 
	Forfeiture: Off
	Frequency: Off
	MERSDateSigned 3: 
	MERSSignedMERS 3: 
	MonthAdopted 3: 
	TitleofSigner 3: 
	PrintedNameofSigner 4: 
	ApprovingEmployer 3: City of Roosevelt Park


